

INVITATION TO BID ITB# 17-272-G FOR

SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements Schedule of Events

DATE

Questions should be directed in writing via e-mail to:

purchasing@roswellgov.com

Submit Proposals to:
 City of Roswell
 Purchasing Division
38 Hill Street, Suite 130
Roswell, Georgia 30075

EVENT

Contents

CONTENTS ERROR! BC	OKMARK NOT DEFINED.
BID LETTER AND CERTIFICATION	4
OFFEROR'S ITB CHECKLIST	5
PROJECT OVERVIEW	6
SECTION 1: ITB INSTRUCTIONS	7
1.1 SINGLE POINT OF CONTACT	7
1.2 REQUIRED REVIEW	7
1.2.1 REVIEW ITB	7
1.2.2 ADDENDA	7
1.2.3 FORM OF QUESTIONS:	7
1.2.4 THE CITY OF ROSWELL'S ANSWERS	7
1.3 Pre-bid Conference	8
1.4 SUBMITTING A SEALED BID	8
1.4.1 Organization of Bid:	8
1.4.2 FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH INSTRUCTIONS:	9
1.4.3 COPIES REQUIRED AND DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF SEALED BIDS:	9
1.4.4 Multiple Bids:	
1.4.5 Late Submissions, Withdrawals, and Corrections	
	_
1.5.1 Understanding of Specifications and Requirements:	
1.5.2 OFFEROR'S SIGNATURE:	
1.5.3 OFFER IN EFFECT FOR 180 DAYS:	
1.6 COST OF PREPARING A BID.	
1.6.1 ROSWELL NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARATION COSTS:	
1.6.2 ALL TIMELY SUBMITTED MATERIALS BECOME ROSWELL'S PROPERTY:	
SECTION 2: ITB RECEIPT AND EVALUATION PROCESS	
2.1 AUTHORITY	
2.2 RECEIPT OF BIDS AND PUBLIC INSPECTION	
2.2.1 Public Information:	
2.2.2 BUYER'S REVIEW OF BIDS:	
2.3 CLASSIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF BIDS	
2.3.1 INITIAL CLASSIFICATION OF BIDS AS RESPONSIVE OR NONRESPONSIVE:	
2.3.2 DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBILITY:	
2.3.3 EVALUATION OF BIDS:	
2.3.4 COMPLETENESS OF BIDS:	
2.3.5 OPPORTUNITY FOR DISCUSSION/NEGOTIATION:	
2.3.6 CONTRACT AWARD:	
2.4 ROSWELL'S RIGHTS RESERVED	12

SECTION 3: SCOPE OF PROJECT/SPECIFICATIONS	12
3.1 CITY'S INTENT	12
3.2 Required Information : General Notes	13
Standard General Notes	13
Special General Notes	13
SECTION 4: OFFEROR QUALIFICATIONS	14
4.1 CITY'S RIGHT TO INVESTIGATE	14
4.2 OFFEROR INFORMATIONAL REQUIREMENTS	15
4.2.1 References:	15
SECTION 5: PRICE SUBMISSION	15
SECTION 6: TERMS AND CONDITIONS	15
6.1 Additional Contract Provisions and Terms	15
6.2 Performance Prior to Contract Execution	16
6.3 CONTRACT TERM	16
6.4 Contract Termination	16
6.5 Subcontractors	16
6.6 Bonding Requirements	16
6.7 GENERAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	17
6.8 COMPLIANCE WITH WORKERS' COMPENSATION ACT	17
6.9 COMPLIANCE WITH ILLEGAL IMMIGRATION REFORM AND ENFORCEMENT ACT	18
E-Verify Program:	18
6.10Compliance with Laws	19
6.11Drug-Free Workplace	19
6.11.1 Certification:	19
6.11.2 PENALTIES:	19
6.12Substitutions and Change Orders	19
6.13 Invoicing and Payment	20
6.14 Taxes	21
6.15 Deliveries	21
APPENDIX A – STANDARD FORMS	22
PRICE BID FORM	23
BID BOND	27
CITY OF ROSWELL GEORGIA	27
(Name of Obligee)	27
(Address of Obligee)	27
REFERENCES	29
BIDDER QUESTIONAIRE	32
LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS	33
CORPORATE CERTIFICATE	34
AFFIDAVIT - CONTRACTOR PARTICIPATION IN FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM	35
APPENDIX B – STANDARD CONTRACT	36

(FAILURE TO INCLUDE THIS SIGNED BID LETTER AND BID CERTIFICATION MAY RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF YOUR BID.)

We propose to furnish and deliver any and all of the deliverables and services named in the attached ITB# 17-272-G SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements for the City of Roswell for which prices have been set. The price or prices offered herein shall apply for the duration of the Project.

It is understood and agreed that this proposal constitutes an offer, which when accepted in writing by the City of Roswell, and subject to the terms and conditions of such acceptance, will constitute a valid and binding contract between the undersigned and the City of Roswell ("City").

It is understood and agreed that we have read the City's specifications titled "Holcomb Bridge – Aesthetic Improvements" dated 6/6/17 which is posted with, shown, or referenced in the ITB and that this proposal is made in accordance with the provisions of such specifications. By our written signature on this proposal, we guarantee and certify that all items included in this proposal meet or exceed any and all such City specifications described in this ITB. We further agree, if awarded a contract, to deliver goods and services which meet or exceed the specifications. The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, waive technicalities, and informalities, and to make an award in the best interest of the City.

It is understood and agreed that this proposal shall be valid and held open for a period of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from proposal opening date.

PROPOSAL SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

I certify that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a proposal ("Offeror") for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I understand collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards. I agree to abide by all conditions of the proposal and certify that I am authorized to sign this proposal for the Offeror. I further certify that the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 45-10-20, et seq. have not been violated and will not be violated in any respect.

Authorized Signature for Offeror		
Date	 	
Print/Type Name		
Print/Type Offeror Name Here		

10 Critical Things to Keep in Mind When Responding to an ITB for the City of Roswell

1.	 Read the <i>entire</i> document. Note critical items such as: supplies/services required; submittal dates; number of copies required for submittal; contract requirements (e.g. bonding and insurance requirements); etc.
2.	 Note the Buyer's name, address, phone numbers and e-mail address. This is the only person you are allowed to communicate with regarding the ITB and is an excellent source of information.
3.	 Attend the pre-bid conference if one is offered. These conferences provide an opportunity to ask clarifying questions, obtain a better understanding of the project, or to notify the City of any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or errors in the ITB. The <u>Schedule of Events</u> will indicate if the pre-bid conference is mandatory.
4.	 Take advantage of the "question and answer" period. Submit your questions to the Buyer by the due date listed in the <u>Schedule of Events</u> and view the answers given in the formal "addenda" issued for the ITB. All addenda issued for an ITB are posted on the City's website and will include all questions asked and answered concerning the ITB.
5.	 Follow the format required in the ITB when preparing your response. Provide point-by-point responses to all sections in a clear and concise manner.
6.	 Provide complete answers/descriptions. Read and answer all questions and requirements. Don't assume the City will know what your company's capabilities are or what items/services you can provide, even if you have previously contracted with the City. The proposals are evaluated based solely on the information and materials provided in the published ITB and in your response.
7.	 Use the forms provided, e.g. cover page, bid sheet, standard forms, etc.
8.	 Check the City's website for ITB addenda. Before submitting your response, check the City's website at http://www.roswellgov.com/bids to see whether any addenda were issued for the ITB. If so, you must submit a signed cover sheet for each addendum issued along with your ITB response.
9.	 Review the ITB document again to make sure that you have addressed all
	requirements. Your original response and the requested copies must be
	identical and complete.
10.	 Submit your proposal on time. Note all the dates and times listed in the Schedule of Events and within the document, and be sure to submit all required items on time. Late proposal responses will not be accepted.

This checklist is provided for assistance only and should not be submitted with Offeror's Bid.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The City of Roswell is accepting bids for the furnishing of all materials, labor, and equipment for the completion of the SR 140/Holcomb Bridge Road – Aesthetic Improvements project. This project will replace the existing GA-400 bridge fencing with a decorative ornamental fence and add 8-foot multi-use paths at the Holcomb Bridge Road/GA-400 interchange. The work shall include traffic control, grading, paving, erosion control, and other items that may be related to the project work as described in detail in the plans, specifications, and other bid documents.

It is anticipated that this project will take 90 calendar days to complete after issuance of the notice to proceed. Liquidated damages will begin accruing after the anticipated project completion date in the amount of \$100 per day past the set calendar days - see project document for details.

SECTION 1: ITB INSTRUCTIONS

1.1 Single Point of Contact

From the date this Invitation to Bid (the "ITB") is issued until an Offeror is selected, **Offerors are not** allowed to communicate with any staff (other than designee below) or elected officials of the City regarding this procurement. Any unauthorized contact may disqualify the Offeror from further consideration. Contact information for the single point of contact is as follows:

Buyer: Greg Anderson Address: 38 Hill Street

Roswell, GA 30075

Telephone Number: 770-641-3718

E-mail Address: purchasing@roswellgov.com

1.2 Required Review

- 1.2.1 Review ITB: Offerors should carefully review this ITB in its entirety including all instructions, requirements, specifications, and terms/conditions and promptly notify the Buyer, identified above, in writing or via e-mail of any ambiguity, inconsistency, unduly restrictive specifications, or error which may be discovered upon examination of this ITB.
- 1.2.2 Addenda: The City of Roswell may revise this ITB by issuing an addendum prior to its opening. The addendum will be posted on the City's website alongside the posting of the ITB at http://www.roswellgov.com/bids. Addenda will become part of the bid documents and subsequent contract. Offerors must sign and return any addendum with their ITB response. Failure to propose in accordance with an addendum may be cause for rejection. In unusual circumstances, the City of Roswell may postpone an opening in order to notify vendors and to give Offerors sufficient time to respond to the addendum.
- 1.2.3 Form of Questions: Offerors with questions or requiring clarification or interpretation of any section within this ITB must address these questions in writing or via e-mail to the Buyer referenced above on or before the date provided in the <u>Schedule of Events</u> of this ITB. Each question must provide clear reference to the section, page, and item in question. Questions received after the deadline may not be considered.
- 1.2.4 The City of Roswell's Answers: The City of Roswell will provide by the date provided in the <u>Schedule of Events</u> of this ITB, an official written answer to all questions received within the period stipulated in the <u>Schedule of Events</u>. The City of Roswell's response will be by formal written addendum. Any other form of interpretation, correction, or change to this ITB will not be binding upon the City of Roswell. Any formal written addendum will be posted on the City's website alongside the posting of the ITB at http://www.roswellgov.com/bids by the close of business on the date listed. Offerors must sign and return any addendum with their ITB response.

If there is a pre-bid conference listed in the <u>Schedule of Events</u>, the date and time will be provided in the <u>Schedule of Events</u>. If a conference is being held, it will be held in Council Chambers, Roswell City Hall, 38 Hill St., Roswell, GA. 30075. The <u>Schedule of Events</u> will state if the Pre-bid Conference is mandatory. If the Pre-Bid Conference is not listed as Mandatory, then attendance is not required, but highly recommended.

1.4 Submitting a Sealed Bid

1.4.1 Organization of Bid: Each bid shall be prepared simply and economically, providing straight-forward, concise delineation of the Offeror's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this ITB. To expedite the evaluation of proposals, it is essential that Offerors follow the format and instructions contained herein.

Offeror shall reference the bid number and closing date and time on the **outside**, **lower left corner** of the envelope containing the bid. Failure to include such information may delay opening of the bid.

Offerors must organize their bids in the following format:

- a. **Bid Letter and Certification** Offeror's authorized representative(s) shall complete and sign the Bid Letter and Certification on page 4 of this ITB and return it with the bid.
- b. **Scope of Project/Specifications** Offeror shall respond comprehensively and clearly to the requirements of *Section 3* and shall include all documents, information, exceptions, clarifications, etc., as requested therein.
- c. Offeror Qualification Offeror shall include all requested documents and information.
- d. **Price Submission** Offeror's authorized official to complete, sign, and return with bid response.
 - i. Offerors **must** respond to this ITB by utilizing the Price Bid Form, along with attachments to it (if any) found in Appendix A.
 - ii. Except in rare cases as described in Section 1.4.5, a bid may not be corrected, withdrawn, or canceled by the Offeror for a 180-day period following the deadline for bid submission as defined in the Schedule of Events, or receipt of best and final offer, if required, and Offeror so agrees in submitting the bid.
 - iii. The Price Bid Form will be used as the primary representation of each Offeror's price, and will be used extensively during bid evaluations.
 - iv. Additional information should be included as necessary to explain in detail the Offeror's price.
- e. **Appendix A, Standard Forms** Offeror's authorized representative(s) **must** complete the standard forms and return with bid response.
- f. **Appendix B, City of Roswell Standard Contract** This contract is the contract that the City of Roswell utilizes for this type of work and has been included for Offeror review.
- g. Appendix C, [Reserved / GDOT Definitions and Special Conditions]

- h. **Addenda** if any addenda have been issued, complete, sign and return the Bid Price Form and reference All Addenda issued for bid.
- 1.4.2 Failure to Comply with Instructions: The City of Roswell may also choose not to evaluate, may deem non-responsive, and/or may disqualify from further consideration any proposals that do not follow this ITB format, are difficult to understand, are difficult to read, or are missing any requested information.
- 1.4.3 Copies Required and Deadline for Receipt of Sealed Bids: All bids must be received in sealed opaque packaging. Offerors must submit the following number of copies to the address set forth on the Cover Page:
 - One (1) unbound hard copy (3-ring binder OK) marked "Original" with original signatures; and
 - One (1) electronic copy. The electronic copy shall be submitted in pdf format (OCR) and organized in the same format as the original submission with each Chapter or Section of the original having a corresponding Electronic File.

Bids must be received sealed and at the location noted on the Cover Page prior to the date and time provided on the Cover Page in the *Schedule of Events*. Facsimile or e-mail responses to invitation for bids are NOT accepted.

1.4.4 Multiple Bids:

If more than one bid is submitted by an Offeror, or by any person or persons representing the Offeror, all such bids shall be rejected as non-responsive. A party who has submitted subcontract or supply prices to an Offeror may submit prices to other Offerors, and may submit a direct and complete bid for the project to the Owner on its own behalf.

1.4.5 Late Submissions, Withdrawals, and Corrections:

- A. Late Bid: Regardless of cause, late bids will not be accepted and will automatically be disqualified from further consideration. It shall be the Offeror's sole risk to assure delivery to the Purchasing Office by the designated time. Late bids will not be opened and may be returned to the Offeror at the expense of the Offeror or destroyed if requested.
- B. **Bid Withdrawal:** An Offeror requesting to withdraw its bid prior to the ITB due date and time may submit a letter to the Buyer requesting to withdraw. The letter must be on company letterhead and signed by an individual authorized to legally bind the firm.
- C. Bid Correction: If an obvious clerical error is discovered after the bid has been opened; the Offeror may submit a letter to the designated Buyer within two business days of opening, requesting that the error be corrected. The letter must be on company letterhead and signed by an individual authorized to legally bind the firm. The Offeror must present clear and convincing evidence that an unintentional error was made. The Buyer will review the correction request and a judgment will be made. Generally, modifications to opened bids for reasons other than obvious clerical errors are not permitted.

1.5 Offeror's Certification

- 1.5.1 Understanding of Specifications and Requirements: By submitting a response to this ITB, Offeror agrees to an understanding of and compliance with the specifications and requirements described in this ITB.
- 1.5.2 Offeror's Signature: All signatures required in the bid on behalf on an Offeror must be signed in ink by an individual authorized to legally bind the business submitting the bid. The Offeror's signature on a bid in response to this ITB guarantees that the prices quoted have been established without collusion and without effort to preclude the City of Roswell from obtaining the best possible supply or service. Proof of authority of the person signing the ITB response must be furnished upon request.
- 1.5.3 Offer in Effect for 180 Days: Except in rare cases as described in *Section 1.4.5*, a bid may not be corrected, withdrawn, or canceled by the Offeror for a 180-day period following the deadline for bid submission as defined in the Schedule of Events, or receipt of best and final offer, if required, and Offeror so agrees in submitting the bid.

1.6 Cost of Preparing a Bid

- 1.6.1 Roswell Not Responsible for Preparation Costs: The costs for developing and delivering responses to this ITB and any subsequent presentations of the bid as requested by the City of Roswell are entirely the responsibility of the Offeror. The City of Roswell is not liable for any expense incurred by the Offeror in the preparation and presentation of their bid.
- 1.6.2 All Timely Submitted Materials Become Roswell's Property: All materials submitted in response to this ITB become the property of the City of Roswell and are to be appended to any formal documentation, which would further define or expand any contractual relationship between the City of Roswell and Offeror resulting from this ITB process.

SECTION 2: ITB RECEIPT AND EVALUATION PROCESS

2.1 Authority

This ITB is issued under the authority of the City of Roswell.

2.2 Receipt of Bids and Public Inspection

2.2.1 Public Information: During the opening of sealed bids, the Offeror's name, bid amount, and other pertinent information will be read aloud and recorded. No other information will be disclosed at that time. Each bid offer is considered open record and all information received in response to this ITB, including copyrighted material, is deemed public information and will be made available for public viewing and copying shortly after bid opening with the following four (4) exceptions: (1) bona fide trade secrets meeting confidentiality requirements that have been properly marked, separated, and documented; (2) matters involving individual safety as determined by the City of Roswell; (3) any company financial information requested by the City of Roswell to determine

vendor responsibility, unless prior written consent has been given by the Offeror; and (4) other constitutional protections.

- 2.2.2 Buyer's Review of Bids: Upon opening the sealed bids received in response to this ITB, the Buyer in charge of the solicitation will review the bids and separate out any information that meets the referenced exceptions in *Section 2.2.1* above, providing the following conditions have been met:
 - Confidential information is clearly marked and separated from the rest of the bid;
 - Bid does not contain confidential material in the price section; and
 - An affidavit from an Offeror's legal counsel attesting to and explaining the validity of the trade secret claim is attached to each bid containing trade secrets.

Information separated out under this process will be available for review only by Buyer, the Finance Director, and limited other designees. Offerors must be prepared to pay all legal costs and fees associated with defending a claim for confidentiality in the event of a "right to know" (open records) request from another party.

2.3 Classification and Evaluation of Bids

- 2.3.1 Initial Classification of Bids as Responsive or Nonresponsive: All bids will initially be classified as either "responsive" or "nonresponsive". Bids may be found nonresponsive at any time during the evaluation process or negotiations if: any of the required information is not provided; the submitted price is found to be excessive or inadequate as measured by criteria stated in the ITB; or the bid is not within the plans and specifications described and required in the ITB. Bids found nonresponsive may not be considered further.
- 2.3.2 Determination of Responsibility: The Buyer will determine whether an Offeror has met the standards of responsibility. Such a determination may be made at any time during the evaluation process and through negotiation if information surfaces that would result in a determination of non-responsibility. If an Offeror is found non-responsible, the determination must be in writing and made a part of the procurement file.
- 2.3.3 Evaluation of Bids: During the evaluation of the bids, the City reserves the right to request clarification of bid responses and to request the submission of references, if deemed necessary for a complete evaluation of bid responses.

Award will be made to the responsive and responsible Offeror whose bid is most economical according to designated criteria. The determination of the lowest responsive and responsible Offeror may involve all or some of the following factors:

- price
- conformity to specifications
- financial ability to meet the contract
- previous performance
- facilities and equipment
- availability of repair parts

- experience
- delivery promise
- terms of payment
- compatibility as required
- other cost
- and other objective and accountable factors, if any

The City shall be the judge of the factors and will make the award in the best interest of the City.

- 2.3.4 Completeness of Bids: Selection and award will be based on the Offeror's bid and other items outlined in this ITB. Submitted responses may not include references to information located elsewhere, such as Internet websites or libraries, unless specifically requested. Information or materials presented by Offerors outside the formal response or subsequent discussion/negotiation, if requested, will not be considered, will have no bearing on any award, and may result in the Offeror being disqualified from further consideration.
- 2.3.5 Opportunity for Discussion/Negotiation: After receipt of all bids and prior to the determination of the award, the City of Roswell may initiate discussions with one or more Offerors should clarification or negotiation be necessary.
- 2.3.6 Contract Award: Award, if any, will be made by City Council upon recommendation, to the Offeror providing the lowest responsive and responsible bid and who provides all required documents.

2.4 Roswell's Rights Reserved

While the City of Roswell has every intention to make an award as a result of this ITB, issuance of the ITB in no way constitutes a commitment by the City of Roswell to award and execute a contract. Upon a determination such actions would be in its best interest, the City of Roswell, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to:

- Cancel or terminate this ITB at any time. A notice of cancellation will be issued on the Roswell
 website. If the ITB is cancelled, the City of Roswell will not reimburse any Offeror for the
 preparation of its bid. Bids may be returned upon request if unopened;
- Reject any or all bids received in response to this ITB;
- Make a contract award, based directly on the bids received, determined to be in the best interest of the City, in its sole discretion;
- Enter into further discussions with one or more Offerors;
- Waive and/or amend any undesirable, inconsequential, or inconsistent provisions/specifications of this ITB which would not have significant impact on any bid;
- Not award if it is in the best interest of the City of Roswell, or;
- Terminate any contract for cause or convenience.

SECTION 3: SCOPE OF PROJECT/SPECIFICATIONS

3.1 City's Intent

The City of Roswell is accepting bids for the furnishing of all materials, labor, and equipment for the The work shall include traffic control, grading, paving, erosion control, and other items that may be related to the project work.

Removal of current fence and replacement with decorative ornamental fence and adding an 8ft multiuse path at the Holcomb Bridge Road / GA400 interchange and any other work as detailed in the plans, specifications, and other bid documents. A Notice to Proceed should be expected within 2 weeks of the anticipated award date of 11/27/2017 and 90 calendar days have been set aside for construction.

3.2 Required Information : General Notes

Standard General Notes

- The quantities shown on the plans are approximate quantities. This project will be paid per the
 actual material quantities used in the field as dictated by the field conditions unless specific lump
 sum pricing is requested in the Price Bid form (and any attached Schedules to the Price Bid form).
 Monthly invoices to be submitted at end of the month for completed work during the previous
 month. It is the contractor's responsibility to include all necessary expenses for the complete
 construction of this project.
- 2. The unit price bid schedule will also apply for change orders, if necessary.
- 3. It is solely the contractor's responsibility to follow all safety code and regulations during all sections of construction.
- 4. It is the contractor's responsibility to determine, and secure access to the job site including areas for materials and equipment storage. The site will be returned to its original condition upon project completion.
- 5. It shall be the contractor's responsibility to notify any and all utility companies for marking and location of any facilities which might be in the way.
- 6. The City of Roswell will not be responsible for any delay caused by the failure of any utility companies to respond in a timely manner. No claims will be considered for extra compensation
- 7. The contractor shall inspect the site, discuss and resolve potential conflicts with the City of Roswell inspector prior to beginning construction.
- 8. On-site burial of debris is prohibited.
- 9. If the contractor damages any existing infrastructure during construction, contractor shall, at contractor's own expense, repair or replace the damaged features in kind or as directed by the City of Roswell inspector and/or the infrastructure owner.
- 10. Notify City of Roswell inspector 72 hours prior to begin construction.
- 11. All revisions to these plans must be submitted to the City of Roswell Department of Transportation and approved by the City of Roswell Transportation Director or Designee prior to continuing construction.

Special General Notes

1. City of Roswell Inspector: Michael Sweinhart

Office: 770-594-6105 Cell: 404-787-8047

msweinhart@roswellgov.com

- 2. The contractor shall make a site visit prior to submittal of the bid. It is the contractor's responsibility to determine, and secure access to the job site including areas for materials and equipment storage. The site will be returned to its original condition upon project completion.
- 3. All work performed shall be in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation's Specifications and Standard Details and Drawings (GDOT Specifications).
- 4. Contractor must be GDOT pre-qualified. A Georgia General Contractor's License is required for this project. GDOT pre-approved Contractor status will be acceptable in lieu of the Georgia General Contractor's License. Submit evidence of licensure with the bid.
- 5. City of Roswell reserves the right to seek clarification and/or reject any unit price bids which are considered unreasonable.
- 6. Contractor to adhere to GDOT Specifications special provisions 643 and 900.
- 7. The project work hours shall be in accordance with GDOT Specifications special provision 150.11 and in consideration of the City Noise Ordinance, from 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM.
- Contractor is required to obtain a right-of-way encroachment permit from the City of Roswell's Transportation Department, utility coordinator John Wooten 770-594-6108 (direct) 6420 (main). The Contractor must apply for the permit, but the City will waive the fee. The permit shall be obtained prior to beginning any work the City of Roswell or the State right-of-way.
- 9. The project time of completion is ninety (90) calendar days from the "Notice to Proceed".
- 10. The project will be awarded on a unit price basis, in accordance with the bid schedule, to the low responsive and responsible bidder.
- 11. Contractor to remove temporary silt fence upon final stabilization.
- 12. Contractor shall test existing signal loop detectors and replace if necessary; contractor to reestablish traffic loop detection in a timely manner; minimize duration without traffic loop detection.
- 13. The selected contractor shall provide a detail traffic control plan. All traffic control devices shall meet the MUTCD, current edition. The traffic control plan shall be approved by the City of Roswell DOT prior to begin construction

SECTION 4: OFFEROR QUALIFICATIONS

4.1 City's Right to Investigate

The City may make such investigations as deemed necessary to determine the ability of the offeror to provide the supplies and/or perform the services specified.

4.2 Offeror Informational Requirements

In determining the capabilities of an offeror to perform the services specified herein, the following informational requirement(s) must be met by the offeror.

4.2.1 References: Offeror shall provide a list of the last <u>five (5)</u> clients/projects of the same general size and scope proposed in this ITB. The City reserves the right to use any information or additional references deemed necessary to establish the ability of the offeror to perform the conditions of the contract. Note that the reputation of the Offeror regarding adequacy of their past skillful performance of work of this type and magnitude required herein, shall be considered when making the award of contract and lack thereof is grounds for bid rejection. (See Exhibit A for Reference Form)

SECTION 5: PRICE SUBMISSION

Offerors shall respond to this bid utilizing the Price Bid form on Page 23 of this ITB and the Schedule of Items attached to the Price Bid form. Award for this project will go to the lowest responsive responsible Offeror.

SECTION 6: TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The City of Roswell's Terms and Conditions are set forth below. Offerors should notify the City of Roswell of any Terms and Conditions that either preclude them from responding to the ITB or add unnecessary cost. This notification must be made by the deadline for receipt of written/e-mailed questions or with the Offeror's ITB response. Any requests for material, substantive, important exceptions to the standard terms and conditions will be addressed by formal written addendum issued by the designated Buyer. The City of Roswell reserves the right to address any non-material, minor, insubstantial exceptions to the terms and conditions with the highest-scored Offeror at the time of contract negotiation.

6.1 Additional Contract Provisions and Terms

This ITB, including all ITB documents and any addenda, the Offeror's bid, including any amendments, any clarification question responses, and any negotiations shall be included as part of the contract upon award. In the event of a dispute as to the duties and responsibilities of the parties under the contract, the contract, along with any attachments prepared by the City of Roswell, will govern in the same order of precedence as listed in the contract.

The Contractor shall commence the work to be performed under this Contract Agreement on a date to be specified in a written Notice to Proceed and shall complete all work hereunder within 90 calendar days. Time is of the essence and is an essential element of this Contract, and the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, not as penalty, but as liquidated damages, the sum of \$100 for each calendar day that there is a default of completing the Work within the time limit named herein. These fixed liquidated damages are not established as a penalty but are agreed upon in advance by the owner and the contractor due to the uncertainty and impossibility of making a determination as to the actual and consequential damages incurred by the Owner and the general public of the City of Roswell, Georgia as a result of the failure on the part of the Contractor to complete the Work on time. Such liquidated

damages referred to herein are intended to be and are cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy now or hereafter enforceable at law, in equity, by statute, or under Contract.

6.2 Performance Prior to Contract Execution

The successful Offeror shall not begin performance of the project prior to the execution of a formal written contract by the City of Roswell and the Offeror. Any Offeror beginning performance prior to the execution of the contract shall be deemed to be proceeding at the Offeror's sole risk, and shall not be entitled to any compensation for such performance. In addition, the City of Roswell reserves the right to withdraw or cancel the award of the ITB.

6.3 Contract Term

The contract term for this bid shall be for duration of the project until completion upon written approval of the City and successful Offeror.

6.4 Contract Termination

The City may terminate, by written notice to the Offeror, any resulting contract with or without cause. The City must give notice of termination to the Offeror at least **30 days** prior to the effective date of termination. See Appendix B – Standard Contract for further details relating to Termination.

6.5 Subcontractors

The lowest responsive and responsible Offeror will be the prime contractor, if a contract is awarded, and shall be responsible, in total, for all work of any subcontractors. All subcontractors, if any, must be listed in the bid submission. The City of Roswell reserves the right to approve all subcontractors. The Contractor shall be responsible to the City of Roswell for the acts and omissions of all subcontractors or agents and of persons directly or indirectly employed by such subcontractors, and for the acts and omissions of persons employed directly by the Contractor. Further, nothing contained within this document or any contract documents created as a result of any contract award derived from this ITB shall create any contractual relationships between any subcontractor and the City of Roswell.

6.6 Bonding Requirements

Each bid must be accompanied with a BID BOND (bond only: certified checks or other forms are not acceptable) in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the base bid, payable to the City of Roswell. Said bid bond guarantees the Offeror will enter into a contract to construct the project strictly within the terms and conditions stated in this bid and in the bidding and contract documents, should the construction contract be awarded.

The successful Offeror shall be required to furnish a bond for the faithful performance on the contract and a bond to secure payment of all claims for materials furnished and/or labor performed in performance of the project, both in amounts equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price.

Bonds shall be issued by a corporate surety appearing on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to do business in the State of Georgia.

Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract. If Contractor is a Partnership, all partners shall execute Bond.

6.7 General Insurance Requirements

The Offeror shall provide the City of Roswell with a Certificate of Insurance on an ACORD or similar form, along with an additionally insured enforcement, to the address listed under *Section 1.1* indicating the existence of the policies prior to the beginning of the contract term. Each policy shall contain a valid provision or endorsement that the policy may not be canceled without giving thirty (30) days written notice thereof to the City of Roswell representative named in the contract. A renewal certificate shall be delivered to the City of Roswell at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of each expiring policy. If at any time, any of the policies shall be or become unsatisfactory to the City of Roswell as to form or substance, or any of the carriers issuing such policies shall be or become unsatisfactory to the City of Roswell, the Offeror shall deliver to the City of Roswell representative upon demand a certified copy of any policy required herein for review. The Certificates of Insurance shall state that 1095 Old Roswell, LLC (1095 Old Roswell Rd, Roswell, GA 30076),

Warsaw Old Roswell Office Investments, LLC (1085 Old Roswell Rd, Roswell GA 30076), and the City of Roswell is additionally insured.

Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance:

Employers Liability:

Bodily Injury by Accident
 Bodily Injury by Disease
 Bodily Injury by Disease
 Bodily Injury by Disease
 \$100,000 each employee

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance:

- (a) \$1,000,000 limit of liability per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage Owner's and Contractor's Protective
- (b) Products/Completed Operations Insurance
- (c) Broad Form Property Damage
- (d) Personal Injury Coverage

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance:

- (a) \$1,000,000 limit of liability
- (b) Comprehensive form covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles

Excess Umbrella Liability Insurance:

- (a) \$1,000,000 limit of liability
- (b) Coverage at least as broad as primary coverage as outlined under Items 1, 2 and 3 above

6.8 Compliance with Workers' Compensation Act

The Contractor is required to supply the City of Roswell with proof of compliance with the Workers' Compensation Act while performing work for the City of Roswell. Neither the Contractor nor its employees are employees of the City of Roswell. Proof of compliance must be received at the address listed under *Section 1.1* within acceptable time limits established by the contract. If the Contractor does not meet the State's requirement for workers' compensation coverage, the certificate of insurance shall state that the contractor waives subrogation in regard to workers' compensation.

E-Verify Program: The City of Roswell is committed to compliance with federal and state laws requiring the verification of newly hired employees to ensure they are lawfully entitled to work in the United States. As such, the City of Roswell shall not enter into a contract for the physical performance of services unless the contractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program (E-Verify). An Offeror should include a fully executed E-Verify affidavit as part of its proposal (Exhibit D).

Requirement to Participate in a Federal Work Authorization Program (E-Verify):

- (1) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91:
 - Public employers shall not enter into any contract for the physical performance of services within the State of Georgia unless the contractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees;
 - Subcontractors shall not enter into any contract with a contractor for the physical performance of services within the State of Georgia unless such subcontractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees; and
 - c. Sub-subcontractors shall not enter into any contract with a subcontractor or sub-subcontractor for the physical performance of services within the State of Georgia unless such sub-subcontractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees.
- (2) As of the date of enactment of O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, the applicable federal work authorization program is "E-Verify" (https://e-verify.uscis.gov/enroll/StartPage.aspx?JS=YES) operated by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Bureau of the United States Department of Homeland Security. Information and instructions regarding E-Verify program registration, corporate administrator registration, and designated agent registration can be found at that website address.

Contractor, Subcontractor, and Sub-subcontractor Evidence of Compliance:

- (1) Public employers who enter into a contract for the physical performance of services within the State of Georgia shall include in such contract a provision stating that compliance with the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 are conditions of the contract.
- (2) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. §13-10-91, public employers shall include in all covered contracts a provision stating the contractor's agreement that, in the event the contractor employs or contracts with a subcontractor in connection with the covered contract, the contractor will secure from such subcontractor attestation of the subcontractor's compliance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-91 by the subcontractor's execution of the subcontractor affidavit and maintain records of such attestation for inspection by the City of Roswell at any time. Such subcontractor affidavit shall become a part of the contractor/subcontractor agreement.

- (3) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. §13-10-91, public employers shall include in all covered contracts a provision stating the contractor's agreement that, in the event the contractor employs or contracts with a subcontractor that employs or contracts with any sub-subcontractor, the subcontractor will secure from such sub-subcontractor attestation of the sub-subcontractor's compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 by the sub-subcontractor's execution of the sub-subcontractor affidavit and maintain records of such attestation for inspection by the City of Roswell at any time. Such sub-subcontractor affidavit shall become a part of the subcontractor/sub-subcontractor agreement.
- (4) All portions of contracts pertaining to compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 and these rules, and any affidavit related hereto, shall be open for public inspection in this State at reasonable times during normal business hours.

6.10 Compliance with Laws

The Offeror must, in performance of work under the contract, fully comply with all applicable federal, state, or local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Any subletting or subcontracting by the Offeror subjects subcontractors to the same provision. The Offeror agrees that the hiring of persons to perform the contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualifications and there will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by the persons performing the contract.

6.11 Drug-Free Workplace

If Contractor is an individual, he or she hereby certifies that he or she will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of this contract.

- 6.11.1 Certification: If Contractor is an entity other than an individual, it hereby certifies that:
 - A drug-free workplace will be provided for the Contractor's employees during the performance of this contract; and
 - ii. It will secure from any subcontractor hired to work in a drug-free workplace the following written certification: "As part of the subcontracting agreement with (Contractor's Name), (Subcontractor's Name), certifies to the Contractor that a drug-free workplace will be provided for the subcontractor's employees during the performance of this contract pursuant to paragraph 7 of subsection B of Code Section 50-24-3."
- 6.11.2 Penalties: Contractor may be suspended, terminated, or debarred if it is determined that:
 - iii. The Contractor has made false certification hereinabove; or
 - iv. The Contractor has violated such certification by failure to carry out the requirements of Official Code of Georgia Section 50-24-3.

6.12 Substitutions and Change Orders

NO substitutions of material, schedule cancellations, or change orders are permitted after contract award without written approval by the City Administrator. Where specific employees are proposed by the Offeror for the work, those employees shall perform the work as long as those employees work for the Contractor, either as employees or subcontractors, unless the City of Roswell agrees to a replacement. Requests for any substitution will be reviewed and may be approved by the City of Roswell at its sole discretion. Verbal agreements to the contrary will not be recognized.

The City of Roswell may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the general scope of this contract in any one or more of the following:

- 1. Drawings, designs, or specifications when the supplies to be furnished are to be specially manufactured for the Government in accordance with the drawings, designs, or specifications.
- 2. Method of shipment or packing.
- 3. Place of delivery.

If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed by the order, the City shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both, and shall modify the contract.

The Contractor must assert its right to an adjustment under this clause within 30 days from the date of receipt of the written order. However, if the City decides that the facts justify it, the City may receive and act upon a proposal submitted before final payment of the contract.

If the Contractor's proposal includes the cost of property made obsolete or excess by the change, the Contracting Officer shall have the right to prescribe the manner of the disposition of the property.

Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute. However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.

6.13 Invoicing and Payment

The City of Roswell agrees to pay the Offeror in current funds for the performance of the contract subject to additions and deductions as provided in the General Conditions of the contract. Upon completion of work and acceptance of the items, the Offeror shall submit a proper invoice detailing the appropriate charges as currently allowed. The City shall retain ten (10%) percent of each payment. In accordance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-80 , the City may or may not discontinue additional retainage after the first 50% of the project and zero thereafter the Completed Work. When all Work is completed and final acceptance has been approved by the City, the Offeror may invoice for the amount retained.

Invoices shall be submitted to:

Roswell Finance Department Attn: Accounts Payable invoices@roswellgov.com 38 Hill Street Roswell, GA 30075

Upon receipt of invoice and inspection and acceptance of the items, the City of Roswell will render payment. All such invoices will be paid within fifteen (15) days by the City of Roswell unless any items thereon are questioned, in which event payment will be withheld pending verification of the amount claimed and the validity of the claim. All invoiced items must be itemized by roadway. The Offeror will provide complete cooperation during any such investigation.

Successful Offeror(s) must register as a vendor with the City with a completed and signed W-9.

6.14 Taxes

No sales tax will be charged on any orders.

6.15 Deliveries

In the event there are to be deliveries on site, all goods and materials will be F.O.B. Destination, Freight Prepaid and Allowed. The onsite delivery address will be mutually agreed upon my the contractor and City.

No freight or postage charges will be paid by the City of Roswell unless such charges are included and accepted in the bid price and awarded by contract. The Offeror, at Offeror's expense, will arrange to have someone onsite to inspect and accept delivery. The Offeror has sole responsibility for securing all materials at the project site. Offeror shall transfer and deliver to the department named all of the goods and/or services described in this bid for the consideration set forth herein. Risk of loss of the goods shall pass to the department upon acceptance only. Title to the goods shall remain with vendor until acceptance by the department.

Appendix A – Standard Forms

This section contains the forms necessary to ensure compliance with various laws as described within this ITB.

Please complete, sign, and return each of the following forms with the bid submittal:

- Price Bid Form
- Bid Schedule of Items
- Bid Bond
- References
- Bidder Questionnaire
- List of Subcontractors
- **Corporate Certificate**
- Affidavit Verifying Contractor Participation in Federal Work Authorization Program (E-Verify)

PRICE BID FORM

TO: BUYER OF RECORD CITY OF ROSWELL ROSWELL, GEORGIA 30075

To Whom It May Concern:

In compliance with your Invitation To Bid, the undersigned, hereinafter termed the Offeror, proposes to enter into a Contract with the City of Roswell, Georgia, to provide the necessary machinery, tools, apparatus, other means of construction, and all materials and labor specified in the Contract Documents or as necessary to complete the Work in the manner therein specified within the time specified, as therein set forth, for:

SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements

The Offeror has carefully examined and fully understands the Contract, Specifications, and other documents hereto attached, has made a personal examination of the Site of the proposed Work, has satisfied himself as to the actual conditions and requirements of the Work, and hereby proposes and agrees that if his bid is accepted, he will contract with the City of Roswell in full conformance with the Contract Documents.

Unless otherwise directed, all work performed shall be in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation *Standard Specifications, Construction of Transportation Systems* (current edition). All materials used in the process of completion of the work included in the Contract will be furnished from Georgia Department of Transportation certified suppliers only.

It is the intent of this Bid to include all items of construction and all Work indicated called for in the Specifications, or otherwise a part of the Contract Documents.

In accordance with the foregoing, the undersigned proposes to furnish and construct the items listed in the attached Bid schedule for the unit prices stated.

The Offeror agrees that the cost of any work performed, materials furnished, services provided or expenses incurred, which are not specifically delineated in the Contract Documents but which are incidental to the scope, intent, and completion of the Contract, shall be deemed to have been included in the prices bid for the various items scheduled.

The Offeror further proposes and agrees hereby to promptly commence the Work with adequate forces and equipment within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of Notice to Proceed and to complete all Work within 90 calendar days thereafter.

Attached hereto is an executed Bid Bond in the amount of _	Dollars (\$ (Five
Percent of Base Bid)).	

If this bid shall be accepted by the City of Roswell and the undersigned shall fail to execute a satisfactory contract in the form of said proposed Contract, and give satisfactory Performance and Payment Bonds, or furnish satisfactory proof of carriage of the insurance required within ten (10) days from the date of Notice of Award of the Contract, then the City of Roswell may, at its option, determine that the undersigned abandoned the Contract and there upon this bid shall be null and void, and the sum stipulated in the attached Bid Bond shall be forfeited to the City of Roswell as liquidated damages.

Offeror agrees that from the date this Invitation to Bid is issued until an award is made, offerors are not allowed to communicate with any staff or elected officials of the City regarding this procurement. Any unauthorized contact may disqualify the offeror from further consideration. Contact information for the single point of contact is as follows:

Buyer: **Greg Anderson** Address: 38 Hill Street

Roswell, GA 30076

Telephone Number: 770-641-3718

E-mail Address: purchasing@roswellgov.com

Bid Number: 17-27 Bid Due Date: 10/3		
Acknowledges reco	eipt of the following addenda number	·
	s, labor and materials called for by the	g the Work, the undersigned proposes t m for the <u>Base Bid Work</u> in accordance
		DOLLARS (Words)
(\$) (Numbers)
Offeror further dec	clares that the full name and resident a	nddress of Offeror's Principal is as follows
		

Offeror		(Seal)
	Company Name	,
Offeror Mailing Address:		
-		
Ву:		
Phone: _		
F-Mail:		

PRICE BID FORM - ATTACHMENT A

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS ITB# 17-272-G

SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements

Bid Schedule

SR 140/Holcomb Bridge Rd. **Aesthetic Improvements**

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNITS	QUANTITY	PRICE	AMOUNT
009-3500	MISCELLANEOUS LANDSCAPE ITEMS (CROSS VINE)	LS	1		
150-1000	TRAFFIC CONTROL	LS	1		
161-1000	EROSION CONTROL	LS	1		
171-0030	TEMPORARY SILT FENCE, TYPE C	LF	740		
210-0100	GRADING COMPLETE	LS	1		
441-6222	CONC CURB & GUTTER, 8 IN X 30 IN, TP2	LF	158		
610-9001	REM SIGN	EA	3		
611-5551	RESET SIGN	EA	3		
636-1033	TP MATL, REFL SHEETING, TP 9	SF	23		
636-1036	TP MATL, REFL SHEETING, TP 11	SF	7		
636-2070	GALV STEEL POSTS, TP 7	LF	34		
636-2090	GALV STEEL POSTS, TP 9	LF	49		
641-1100	GUARDRAIL, TP T	LF	288		
641-1200	GUARDRAIL, TP W	LF	419		
641-5001	GUARDRAIL ANCHORAGE, TP 1	EA	2		
641-5012	GUARDRAIL ANCHORAGE, TP 12	EA	1		
643-8300	ORNAMENTAL FENCE	LF	605		
700-9300	SOD	SY	1,224		
900-0035	CONCRETE AND BRICK PAVERS SIDEWALK	SF	4,452		

= Acre LF = Linear Feet = Cubic Yard LS = Lump Sum B	Amount in Words:	
= Each SF = Square Feet	Amount in words:	
- Gallon SV - Square Vard	's Company Name:	

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT	(Name
of Contractor)	(Address of
Contractor) a	
(Corporation, Partnership and or Individual) hereinafter called Principal, and	
(Name of Surety)	
(Address of Surety)	
a corporation of the State of, and a surety authorized by law to do State of Georgia, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto	business in the
City of Roswell Georgia (Name of Obligee) 38 Hill Street Suite 235, Roswell Georgia 30075 (Address of Obligee)	
herein after referred to as Obligee, in the penal sum of	
WHEREAS, the Principal is about to submit, or has submitted, to the City of Roswell, Geoffor furnishing materials, labor, and equipment for:	rgia, a proposal

SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements

WHEREAS, the Principal desires to file this Bond in accordance with law in lieu of a certified Offeror's check otherwise required to accompany this Proposal.

NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that if the bid is accepted, the Principal shall within ten days after receipt of notification of the acceptance execute a Contract in accordance with the Bid and upon the terms, conditions, and prices set forth in the form and manner required by the City of Roswell, Georgia, and execute a sufficient and satisfactory Performance Bond and Payment Bond payable to the City of Roswell, Georgia, each in an amount of 100% of the total Contract Price, in form and with security satisfactory to said the City of Roswell, Georgia, and otherwise, to be and remain in full force and virtue in law; and the Surety shall, upon failure of the Principal to comply with any or all of the foregoing requirements within the time specified above, immediately pay to the City of Roswell, Georgia, upon demand, the amount hereof in good and lawful money of the United States of America, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that Principal and Surety agree and represent that this bond is executed pursuant, to and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, as Amended, including, but not limited to, O.C.G.A. SS 13-10-1, et. seg. and SS 36-86-101, et. seg. and is intended to be and shall be constructed as a bond in compliance with the requirements thereof.

Signed, sealed, and dated this	day of	A.D., 20
ATTEST:		
(Principal Secretary)		(Principal)
(SEAL)	ВУ	:
(Witness to Principal)		(Address)
(Address)		
		(Surety)
ATTEST	BY:	(Attorney-in-Fact) and Resident Agent
(Attorney-in-Fact)		
(Seal)(Address)		
(Witness as to Surety)		
(Address)		

NOTE: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract. If Contractor is a Partnership, all partners should execute Bond.

REFERENCES

REFERENCES: Please provide the City with the last five (5) clients of similar size and scope. You may submit your standard list of references as opposed to using this form, but you still need to complete and sign at the bottom.

Name of Entity/Firm:
Mailing Address:
City/State/Zip Code:
Contact Person Name:
Contact Person Telephone Number:
Date When Work Performed:
Description of Work Performed:
REFERENCE # 2
Name of Entity/Firm:
Mailing Address:
City/State/Zip Code:
Contact Person Name:
Contact Person Telephone Number:
Date When Work Performed:
Description of Work Performed:

REFERENCE # 1

REFERENCE # 3

Name of Entity/Firm:
Mailing Address:
City/State/Zip Code:
Contact Person Name:
Contact Person Telephone Number:
Date When Work Performed:
Description of Work Performed:
REFERENCE # 4
Name of Entity/Firm:
Mailing Address:
City/State/Zip Code:
Contact Person Name:
Contact Person Telephone Number:
Date When Work Performed:
Description of Work Performed:

REFERENCE # 5

Mailing Address:		
City/State/Zip Code:		
Contact Person Name:		
Contact Person Telephone Number:		
Date When Work Performed:		
Description of Work Performed:		
By signing below, I certify that this bid is n connection with any corporation, firm, or pel or equipment, and is in all respects fair ar collusive bidding is a violation of State and Fe	rson submitting a bid for same mate nd without collusion or fraud. I un	erials, supplies derstand that
and civil damage awards. I agree to abide to authorized to sign this bid for the offeror. I full of Georgia Annotated and the Code of Ordin be violated in any respect.	by all conditions of this bid, and cer rther certify that the provisions of the	tify that I am e Official Code
authorized to sign this bid for the offeror. I fu of Georgia Annotated and the Code of Ordin	by all conditions of this bid, and cer rther certify that the provisions of the	tify that I am e Official Code
authorized to sign this bid for the offeror. I ful of Georgia Annotated and the Code of Ordin be violated in any respect.	by all conditions of this bid, and cer rther certify that the provisions of the	tify that I am e Official Code
authorized to sign this bid for the offeror. I fun of Georgia Annotated and the Code of Ordin be violated in any respect. Name of Company:	by all conditions of this bid, and cer rther certify that the provisions of the ances of the City of Roswell have no	tify that I am e Official Code at and will not
authorized to sign this bid for the offeror. I fun of Georgia Annotated and the Code of Ordin be violated in any respect. Name of Company: Contact Name:	by all conditions of this bid, and cer rther certify that the provisions of the ances of the City of Roswell have no	tify that I am e Official Code at and will not

BIDDER QUESTIONAIRE

1.	vviiatis	s the hai	ne your firm as it will appear on the blu Documents!	
2.	termin	ated for	t three years has any of your firm's contracts been terminated for default, or convenience prior to the expiration of the current term, or had a payment or ond successfully called? YES NO (please circle one).	
3.	If yes, please explain the circumstances and provide an owner contact:			
	i.	Circum	stances (attach additional documentation as necessary):	
	ii.	Owner	Contact	
		1.	Organization Name:	
		2.	Contact Name:	
		3.	Telephone:	
		4.	Email:	

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

onose to Subcontract work t	, propose to subcontract some of t to the following subcontractors:	ile work on this proje
opose to suscentract work	to the following subcontractors.	
SUBCONTRACTOR	WORK TO BE PERFORMED	% OF THE WORK

* The City of Roswell requires 51% participation by the prime Contractor on all projects.

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE

l,	, certify that I am the Secretary of the Corporation
named as Contractor on the fore	oing bid; that
who signed said bid in behalf of t	e Contractor, was then (title)
said Corporation; that said bid w	s duly signed for and on behalf of said Corporation by author
of its Board of Directors, and is w	thin the scope of its corporate powers; that said
Corporation is organized under t	e laws of the State of
This day of	, 20
 (Signature)	(Seal)

AFFIDAVIT - CONTRACTOR PARTICIPATION IN FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation which is engaged in the physical performance of services on behalf of the City of Roswell (GA) has registered with, is authorized to use and uses the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91. Furthermore, the undersigned contractor will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period and the undersigned contractor will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the contractor with the information required by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(b).

Contractor hereby attests that its federal work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows:

Federal Work Authorization (E-Verify) User Identification Number
Date of Authorization
Name of Contractor
Name of Project
I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed on,, 201 in (city), (state).
Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME ON THIS THE DAY OF, 201
NOTARY PUBLIC My Commission Expires:

Appendix B – Standard Contract

CONTRACT AGREEMENT

This Contract for the SR 140-H	Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements Project (the "Project")
is made as of the day of	2017 (the "Execution Date") by and between
("Contractor") and The City of Roswe	ell ("City"). Contractor and City may be referred to individually as a
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties"	·

CONTRACT:

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all material, labor, equipment, and tools necessary for the Project located in Roswell, GA, as well as all work incidental and pertinent thereto all in accordance with the Contract (hereinafter designated the "CONTRACT"); ITB# 17-272-G SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements (hereinafter designated the "Proposal"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein; and the CONTRACTOR'S Response to ITB# 17-272-G SR 140-Holcomb Bridge Road Aesthetic Improvements (Exhibit B) (hereinafter designated the "Response"). In the event of any conflict, ambiguity, or inconsistency between the terms contained in this CONTRACT and the Exhibits, the terms set forth in this CONTRACT shall govern and control.
- 2. The term of the CONTRACT shall begin on the Execution Date above, and shall be for the duration of the project, unless sooner terminated as permitted herein, or unless extended by agreement of the parties set forth in writing. The CONTRACTOR is required to submit to the City a Certificate of Insurance prior to commencing work. In addition, the work shall be scheduled as agreed upon by the parties. Work shall commence with adequate force and equipment within ten (10) days from the Notice to Proceed from the City and shall be completed within 100 calendar days thereafter.

3. Pricing

The City shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the CONTRACTOR'S performance in accordance with the amounts established in CONTRACTOR'S Completed Price Bid Form or the amount finally awarded by City (\$ _______). The City shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the prices stipulated in the Bid Schedule based upon verified quantities. No price adjustments shall be made during the term or any extension of this Contract except upon mutual consent of the parties. The contractor shall invoice the City on a monthly basis for actual quantities completed.

4. Termination

(a) Termination by City: City may at its sole option terminate this CONTRACT by giving the CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days written notice. Should the CONTRACTOR fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this CONTRACT or if it should violate any of the terms of this CONTRACT, the City shall have the right to immediately terminate the CONTRACT. Such termination

shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any liability to the City for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by CONTRACTOR. A reasonable period of time to cure a CONTRACTOR breach of CONTRACT can be negotiated with the CONTRACTOR selected.

- (b) *Termination by CONTRACTOR.* If at any time or from time to time during the Term, any of the following events shall occur and not be remedied within the applicable period of time herein specified, namely:
 - (i) City shall materially fail to keep, observe or perform any covenant, agreement, term or provision of this CONTRACT to be kept, observed or performed by City, and such default shall continue for a period of sixty (60) days after written notice thereof by CONTRACTOR to City, which shall specify such failure with particularity.
- (c) Continuing Obligations. If this CONTRACT is terminated pursuant to this Section 4, the Parties shall account for and pay to the other all sums due and owing pursuant to the terms of this CONTRACT within thirty (30) days after the effective date of termination.
- (d) Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable for any loss, damage, delay or nonperformance of any Services as a result of causes not reasonably within the control of such Party including, but not limited to, acts of God, terrorism, war, riot, insurrection, civil violence or disobedience, blockages, embargoes, sabotage, epidemics, fire, strikes, lock-outs or other industrial or labor disturbances, lighting, hurricanes, cyclonic storms, and explosions; provided, however, that the affected Party notifies the other Party promptly of the occurrence of the cause and thereafter exerts commercially reasonable efforts to overcome the cause of the prevention or hindrance if such cause is within the Party's reasonable control, and to resume performance.

5. Representations and Warranties

- (a) Representations by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants to City that:
 - (i) CONTRACTOR is a not for profit company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Georgia, is duly qualified to conduct business in the State of Georgia and has the requisite power and authority to enter into this CONTRACT and perform its obligations hereunder.
 - (ii) CONTRACTOR has all requisite power and authority to enter into and perform this CONTRACT and to perform each of its obligations under this CONTRACT. This CONTRACT and the transactions contemplated by this CONTRACT have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of CONTRACTOR.
 - (iii) This CONTRACT has been duly executed and delivered by CONTRACTOR and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of CONTRACTOR, enforceable against CONTRACTOR in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that its enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other applicable laws affecting creditors' rights generally.
 - (iv) The execution and delivery of this CONTRACT by CONTRACTOR does not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein will not (i) result in the breach of any of the terms and conditions of, or constitute a default with respect to or result in the acceleration of any indebtedness or create liability under any material contract, agreement, commitment, indenture, mortgage, note, bond, lease, license or other instrument or obligation to which CONTRACTOR is now a party or by which CONTRACTOR may be bound or affected; or (ii) violate

any law or any rule or regulation of any administrative agency or governmental body, or any order, writ, injunction or decree of any court, administrative agency or governmental body. The execution and delivery of this CONTRACT, do not, and will not constitute a material default under any organization or governing agreement relating to CONTRACTOR.

- (b) Representations by City. City hereby represents and warrants to CONTRACTOR as follows:
 - (i) City is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Georgia, is duly qualified to conduct business in the State of Georgia and has the requisite power and authority to enter into this CONTRACT and perform its obligations hereunder.
 - (ii) City has all requisite power and authority to enter into and perform this CONTRACT and to perform each of its obligations under this CONTRACT. This CONTRACT and the transactions contemplated by this CONTRACT have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of City.
 - (iii) This CONTRACT has been duly executed and delivered by City and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of City, enforceable against City in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that its enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other applicable laws affecting creditors' rights generally.
 - (iv) The execution and delivery of this CONTRACT by City does not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein will not (i) result in the breach of any of the terms and conditions of, or constitute a default with respect to or result in the acceleration of any indebtedness or create liability under any material contract, agreement, commitment, indenture, mortgage, note, bond, lease, license or other instrument or obligation to which City is now a party or by which City may be bound or affected; or (ii) violate any law or any rule or regulation of any administrative agency or governmental body, or any order, writ, injunction or decree of any court, administrative agency or governmental body. The execution and delivery of this CONTRACT, do not, and will not constitute a material default under any organization or governing agreement relating to City
- (c) *Disclaimer of Warranties*. Other than as specifically set forth herein, neither of the Parties makes any representations, warranties or guarantees, express or implied, directly or indirectly, including, but not limited to, any warrant of merchantability or fitness for a particularly purpose.

6. <u>Indemnification</u>

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to hold harmless and indemnify City, and its employees, agents, representatives, successors and assigns from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, demands, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, judgments, assessments, costs and expenses, including, without limitation, interest, penalties, reasonable attorneys' fees, any and all expenses incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any litigation, commenced or threatened, or any claim whatsoever, and any and all amounts paid in settlement of any claim or litigation (collectively, "Damages"), asserted against, resulting to, imposed upon, or incurred or suffered by of them, directly or indirectly, as a result of, arising from, or relating directly or indirectly to: (i) any inaccuracy in or any breach or nonfulfillment of any of the representations or warranties made by CONTRACTOR in this Agreement; (ii) any breach or nonfulfillment of any of the covenants or agreements made by CONTRACTOR in this CONTRACT; or (iii) any violations of law by CONTRACTOR in performing its obligations under this CONTRACT.

7. Insurance

The CONTRACTOR, at all times that this CONTRACT is in force, agrees to provide, as a minimum, worker's compensation, commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance coverage in accordance with the Insurance Requirements provided in Section 6.7 of ITB [BID_NUM].

8. Compliance with All Laws and Licenses

The Contractor must obtain all necessary licenses and comply with local, state and federal requirements. The Contractor shall comply with all laws, rules and regulations of any governmental entity pertaining to its performance under this CONTRACT.

9. Assignment

The Contractor shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this CONTRACT without the City of Roswell's prior written consent.

10. Amendments in Writing

No amendments to this CONTRACT shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties.

11. Policy on Hiring of Non-Resident Aliens

The final award of a contract is contingent upon compliance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-91 and Chapter 300-10-1 of the Rules of the Georgia Department of Labor, and the Contractor certifying to the City that it, and all its subcontractors, has registered and currently participates in the federal work authorization program to verify information of all new employees with respect to all public employers, contractors, or subcontractors. Contractor may be suspended, terminated, or debarred if it is determined that the Contractor has made false certification or that the Contractor has violated such certification by failure to carry out this requirement.

12. Inclusion of Documents, Exhibits

ITB# 17-272-G and the Contractor's proposal submitted in response thereto, including any best ar	nd
final offer, are incorporated in this CONTRACT; form an integral part of this CONTRACT; and, a	re
attached hereto as and date issued:	
Contractor's Proposal identified as	

In the event of a conflict in language between this Agreement and the foregoing documents incorporated herein, the provisions and requirements set forth in this Agreement shall govern. In the event of a conflict between the language of the ITB, as amended, and the Contractor's bid, the language in the former shall govern.

13.0 **Entire Agreement**

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein; all prior agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, and undertakings are suspended hereby. Either party has relied on any representation, promise, or inducement not contained herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their duly authorized officers as of the day and year set forth next to each signature.

CITY OF ROSWELL:	CONTRACTOR:
Ву:	By:
Title:	Title:
Name:	Name:
Date:	Date:

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CITY OF ROSWELL

SPECIAL PROVISION

FULTON COUNTY

Section 900 – MISCELLANEOUS (CONCRETE AND BRICK PAVERS SIDEWALK)

Add the following:

900.1 General Description

The work specified in this section consists of placing, furnishing and installing the Portland cement concrete and standard brick pavers sidewalk as show in the plans. This work shall include all labor equipment and the contractor's warranty used to place and install the concrete and standard brick pavers sidewalk.

900.1.01 Definitions

General Provisions 101 through 150.

900.1.02 Related References

A. Standard Specifications

Section 209—Subgrade Construction

Section 430—Portland Cement Concrete Pavement

Section 832—Curing Agents

Section 833—Joint Fillers and Sealers

B. Referenced Documents

General Provisions 101 through 150.

900.1.03 Submittals

General Provisions 101 through 150.

- A. Product Data: Submit manufacturer's technical data for each type of brick paver along with installation instructions.
- B. Samples: Submit samples of each type of brick paver for approval by the Engineer. Also submit samples of setting bed course materials and joint mortar. Include enough samples to show the full range of exposed color and texture to be expected in the completed work.

900.2 Materials

Use concrete conforming to the minimum requirements for Class "B," as specified in <u>Section 500</u>, except a one-bag mixer may be used. The requirements of <u>Subsection 500.1.03.G</u>, "Cold Weather Concrete Curing and Protection Plan" and <u>Subsection 500.3.05.X</u>, "Pour Concrete in Cold Weather" for cold weather concrete placement are deleted.

Place concrete only when the air temperature is 40 °F and rising. Protect concrete from freezing for the first 24 hours. Hand finishing is allowed.

A. All paving bricks furnished and pattern shall be new and meet the requirements as per plan details.

900.2.01 Delivery, Storage, and Handling

General Provisions 101 through 150.

Protect brick pavers and aggregate during storage and construction against wetting by rain, snow or groundwater and against soilage of contamination from earth or other types of materials.

900.3 Construction Requirements

900.3.01 Personnel

General Provisions 101 through 150.

Installer Qualifications: Use an experienced Installer who has successfully completed at least three years of brick paver installations similar in material, design and extent to that indicated for this project.

900.3.02 Equipment

Forms

Forms are subject to the Engineer's approval. Use forms that consist of:

- Wood or metal that is readily available
- Straight and oiled before each use

Use metal divider plates and templates.

900.3.03 Preparation

The Contractor shall follow manufacturer's instructions for installing brick pavers. In addition the contractor shall follow these guidelines when installing brick pavers:

- Before constructing sidewalk compact the subgrade surface. Use mechanical tamps for compaction if necessary as per plan requirements.
- Proof roll prepared subgrade surface to check for unstable areas and areas requiring additional compaction. Do not proceed with installation of sidewalk and brick pavers until deficient subgrades have been corrected and are ready to receive subbase for sidewalk & brick pavers.

900.3.04 Fabrication

General Provisions 101 through 150.

900.3.05 Construction

A. Extent of concrete an brick pavers

- 1. See the Plans to determine the areas of concrete and brick pavers and the dimensions.
- 2. Pavers: Brick pavers are to be the color and set in the pattern as described in the Plans.

B. Preparation of Subgrade

Finish the subgrade for concrete and brick pavers to the line and grade on the Plans and the following:

C. Concrete

1. Mixing

Mix Class "B" concrete as specified in Section 500 with the following exceptions:

a. Use of small capacity job-site batchers and one-bag mixers is allowed. The rate of concrete placement in <u>Subsection 500.3.05.P</u>, "Meet the Minimum Placement Rates" is waived for miscellaneous concrete.

b. Proportion concrete ingredients volumetrically if the Engineer has approved equipment calibration and operation and the operator is certified by the Office of Materials and Research.

2. Placing and Finishing

Place and finish concrete as follows:

 Deposit concrete within forms or against other pavements on a compacted and wetted subgrade to the depth to produce the specified thickness.

NOTE: Do not place concrete on a muddy or frozen surface.

b. Strike off the concrete to a plane surface and finish it with a Type IV or Type V finish as defined in Subsection 500.3.05.AB, "Finish Concrete" and complete the following:

3. Joints

Prepare expansion joints according to the materials, dimensions, and locations specified on the Plans.

4. Curing

Use curing methods specified in <u>Subsection 430.3.05.L</u>, "Cure the Concrete." Ensure that the membrane curing compound is Type 2, if used. Pack honeycombed areas immediately after removing the forms.

D. Construction Requirements

- 1. Do not use brick pavers with chips, cracks, voids, discolorations, and other defects that might be visible or cause staining in finished work.
- 2. Cut brick pavers with motor-driven, diamond blade wet masonry saw equipment to provide clean, sharp, unchipped edges. Cut brick pavers to provide pattern indicated and to fit adjoining work neatly. Use full brick pavers without cutting where possible. Hammer cutting is unacceptable.
- 3. Tolerances: Do not exceed 1/32" brick paver-to-brick paver offset from plush (lippage) and a tolerance of 1/8" in 10' from level of slope as indicated for finished surface of paving.
- 4. Set brick pavers in the approved pattern with the pavers being placed tight to each other careful not to disturb the setting bed. Use string lines to keep straight paver corner lines. Fill gaps between brick pavers with pieces cut to fit from full-size brick pavers.
- 5. Clean all stains and tire marks off pavers, and replace cracked or chipped pavers prior to final inspection.
- 6. Ensure construction traffic other than wheelbarrow shall not be allowed on completed paver installations until final completion.
- 7. Do not lay brick pavers in freezing weather or when the pavers contain frost, except with the permission from the Engineer.
- 8. In hot and dry weather, protect paver work to prevent excessive evaporations of mortar, if applicable.

E. Clean-Up

1. When sidewalk work is complete, clean surface. Protect the work from stains or other damage until Final Acceptance.

900.3.06 Quality Acceptance

General Provisions 101 through 150.

900.3.07 Contractor Warranty and Maintenance

General Provisions 101 through 150.

Provide manufacturer's warranties and guarantees for all paving bricks to be free of defects, if applicable. Provide contractor warranty which includes all labor and materials to replace all cracked or chipped pavers and reset any pavers settled or heaved out of plane within two years of completion.

Contractor shall certify to Engineer in writing that the installation is in accordance with the requirements

900.4 Measurement

Concrete Sidewalk with Brick Pavers

The area measured for payment is the square feet of concrete and brick pavers sidewalk placed according to the plans. The cost of excavation, saw cutting, subgrade preparation, aggregate, sand setting bed, filler, backfill and all other incidentals to complete the work shall not be measured separately but shall be included in the price bid for concrete and brick pavers sidewalk.

900.4.01 Limits

General Provisions 101 through 150.

900.5 Payment

The concrete and brick pavers sidewalk shall be measured as specified above and paid for at the Contract Price per square foot.

Payment will be made under:

Item No	. 900 Concrete and Brick Pav	ers Sidewalk	Per square foot
---------	------------------------------	--------------	-----------------

900.5.01 Adjustments

General Provisions 101 through 150.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CITY OF ROSWELL

SPECIAL PROVISION

FULTON COUNTY

Section 643—Fence (Ornamental Fence)

Add the following:

643.1 General Description

This Specification is the design, materials, fabrication, transportation, erection, measurement, and payment for Ornamental Fence complete in place.

643.1.01 Definitions

The Ornamental Fence is the entire fence system, including, but is not limited to, posts, horizontal members, vertical pickets, hardware, connection assemblies, and connections.

643.1.02 Related References

A. Standard Specifications

- a. ASTM A 276 Standard Specification for Stainless Steel Bars and Shapes.
- b. ASTM B 221 Specification for Aluminum Alloy Extruded Bars, Rods, Wire Shapes, and Tubes.
- c. AAMA 2604 Voluntary Specification, Performance Requirements and Test Procedures for Pigmented Organic Coating on Aluminum Extrusions and Panels.

643.1.03 Submittals

A. Plans

Submit elevations, calculations, and specifications to the Engineer for approval prior to beginning fabrication and construction.

Submit product data with technical data on ultimate strength of materials and application instructions.

Samples of exposed finish: Submit two samples, 12 inch long in size illustrating aluminum finish.

B. Contractor and Fabricator Qualifications

Have at least five (5) years' experience designing and fabricating these type structures and a minimum of five (5) successful fence projects, of similar construction, each of which has been in service at least three (3) years. List the location, height, owner, and a contact for reference for each project.

643.1.04 Design Criteria

A. Geometry

The lengths, radii and heights should be as shown on the Detail sheets.

B. Loading

Include the following loads in the design:

- 1. Self weight.
- 2. AASHTO Pedestrian Railing Loading.
- 3. AASHTO Wind Loads.

643.2 Materials

D. Ornamental Fence

- 1. Aluminum
 - a. Post, vertical and horizontal members to have a minimum ultimate strength of 35,000psi.
 - b. Posts to have a minimum wall thickness of 0.125 inches.
 - c. Horizontal members to have a minimum wall thickness of 0.100 inches.
 - d. All fence materials and connections shall be coated with TGIC polyester powder-coat finish, black.

2. Structural Steel

a. Use hot-dipped galvanized structural steel.

3. Bolts

- a. Bolts: ASTM A307 Zinc Coated
- b. Washers: ASTM F844 Zinc Coated
- c. Nuts: ASTM A563, Zinc Coated, grade and style as required for A307 bolts.

4. Pickets

- a. The hollow pickets pass through the rails and are attached using stainless steel screws.
- b. Pickets are 3/4" square x 0.062" thick, minimum.
- c. Pickets to be spaced 6" apart, maximum.

5. Horizontal Rails

a. Rails are 1 1/2" square x 0.100" thick, minimum.

6. Posts

a. Posts are 2 1/2" square maximum x 0.125" thick, minimum.

7. TGIC – Polyester Powder Coated

- a. The finish shall conform to and pass the following standards and tests:
- b. Salt spray resistance test ASTM B-117.
- c. Humidity resistance test ASTM D-227 no blistering at 3000 hours.

643.3 Construction Requirements

643.5.04 Fabrication

A. Fabrication

- 1. Workmanship: perform the fabrication, bolting, and workmanship in accordance with Section 516 of the Georgia D.O.T. Specifications.
- 2. Finish: all fence materials and connections shall be coated with TGIC polyester powder-coat finish, black.

B. Delivery, Storage and Handling

Transport, handle, store, and protect products so that they are in undamaged condition when installed. Store products in manufacturer's unopened packaging to protect pre-finished aluminum surface until ready for installation.

Store components off the ground in dry covered area, protect from adverse weather conditions.

643.3.05 Construction

Ornamental fence shall come in fully assembled units to be placed between posts. Sections shall be installed 2" from top of parapet. Pre-punched posts shall be used to connect the sections. Posts shall be installed and laid out according to plans. Posts shall be attached and secured using the existing chain link fence support system as shown on the plans. The fence shall be installed into set posts and inserting a section into the pre-punched holes in the posts. The next section shall be installed after the previous section has been installed.

643.3.06 Quality Assurance

Manufacture Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum five (5) years documented experience.

643.5 Measurement

This work will be measured for payment per linear foot, from the outside of end post for each continuous run of fence, complete and accepted in place.

643.6 Payment

This work will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per linear foot complete in place. Payment includes all material, labor, and equipment necessary to complete the work.

Payment will be made under:

Ī	Item No. 643	Ornamental Fence	Per Linear Feet

643.6.01 Adjustments

General Provisions 101 through 150.